
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

                                                                                                                                                                                              

SOUTH HAMS LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - WEDNESDAY, 22ND JANUARY, 2014

Agenda, Reports and Minutes for the meeting

Agenda No Item

1. Agenda Letter  (Pages 1 - 2)

2. Reports  

Reports to Licensing Sub Committee:

a) Shell Carew, A38, South Brent  (Pages 3 - 14)

3. Minutes  (Pages 15 - 20)





To: Members of the Licensing Sub-Committee Our Ref:  CS/KT
(Cllrs Baverstock, Carson and Gilbert)

14 January 2014 
Usual Officer and Press Circulation and local Ward Members

Dear Councillor

A meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee will be held in the Cary Room, Follaton House, 
Plymouth Road, Totnes on Wednesday, 22 January 2014 at 10.00 am when your 
attendance is requested.

Yours sincerely

Kathryn Trant
Member Services Manager

FOR ANY QUERIES ON THIS AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT KATHRYN TRANT, 
MEMBER SERVICES MANAGER ON DIRECT LINE 01803 861185

A G E N D A

1. Appointment of Chairman;

2. Division of Agenda - to consider whether the discussion of any item of business is 
likely to lead to the disclosure of exempt information;

3. Declarations of Interest - Members are invited to declare any personal or 
disclosable pecuniary interests, including the nature and extent of such interests; they 
may have in any items to be considered at this meeting;

4. To determine an application for a new Premises Licence at Shell Carew, A38, 
South Brent, firstly in accordance with Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 
to determine the ‘primary use’ of the premises.  If the premises are primarily 
used as a ‘garage’ selling petrol or diesel then the applicants are prohibited 
from selling alcohol.  If determined the primary use of the premises is not a 
‘garage’ but a ‘shop’ that also sells fuel, to state the reason(s) why and 
continue to determine the application in accordance with Section 18 of the 
Licensing Act 2003.  If determined the ‘primary’ use of the premises is that of 
a garage to state the reason(s) why and then continue to determine the ‘late 
night refreshment element’ of the application (pages 1 to 65).

Members of the public may wish to note that the Council's meeting rooms
are accessible by wheelchairs and have a loop induction hearing system



Members of the public shall be permitted to record the proceedings of
any meeting in sound and pictures and broadcast them whether by electronic

means or otherwise, subject to receiving the prior approval of the Chairman of the 
Committee, in consultation with the Chief Executive (or Monitoring Officer in his/her 

absence)

MEMBERS ARE REQUESTED TO SIGN THE ATTENDANCE REGISTER

THIS AGENDA HAS BEEN PRINTED ON ENVIRONMENTALLY FRIENDLY PAPER

If you or someone you know would like this publication in a different format, 
such as large print or a language other than English, please call Darryl White 

on 01803 861247 or by email at: darryl.white@southhams.gov.uk



 
 
 

SOUTH HAMS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
NAME OF COMMITTEE  
 

Licensing Sub -Committee  

DATE 
 

Wednesday 22 January 2014 

REPORT TITLE 
 

Application for a new Premises Licence  

Report of  
 

The Business Support / Licensing Manager   

WARDS AFFECTED 
 

Erme Valley  

 
 
Summary of report: 
To determine an application for a new Premises Licence at Shell Carew, A38, South 
Brent, TQ10 9ER, firstly in accordance with Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 to 
determine the ‘primary use’ of the premises. If the premises are primarily used as a 
‘garage’ selling petrol or diesel then the applicants are prohibited from selling alcohol. If 
determined the primary use of the premises is not a ‘garage’ but a ‘shop’ that also sells 
fuel, to state the reason(s) why and continue to determine the application in accordance 
with Section 18 of the Licensing Act 2003. If determined the ‘primary’ use of the 
premises is that of a garage to state the reason(s) why and then continue to determine 
the ‘late night refreshment element’ of the application.  
 
Financial implications: 
There are no direct financial implications to the Council from this Report. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 

That the Sub-Committee consider the application for  a new Premises 
Licence and make determinations in respect of this application, namely to: 

 
a) consider whether premises would be “excluded pre mises” as defined 

under Section 176 Licensing Act 2003 as: 
i) premises used primarily as a garage or which for m part of premises 

which are primarily so used. (If so determined then (b) below for the late 
night refreshment element of the application. If determined that premises are 
not primarily a garage and therefore not ‘excluded premises’ to continue with 
(b) below for both the retail sale of alcohol for consumption off the premises 
and the provision of late night refreshment).   

 
 
 

 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

4 

AGENDA 
ITEM 

4 



b) i) grant the application as submitted, subject t o any Mandatory Conditions 
required; 

ii) modify the conditions of the licence; 
iii) exclude any of the licensable activities to wh ich the application relates; 
iv) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as  the premises supervisor: 
v) reject the application, 
 
in line with the licensing objectives (Section 4) c ontained within the 
Licensing Act 2003. 

 
Officer contact:  
Graham Munson   
graham.munson@swdevon.gov.uk 01803 861336 
 
 
1. BACKGROUND  
 
1.1 The Licensing Authority has received an application for a new premises licence 

from Lockett & Co on behalf of Shell UK Oil Products Limited for Shell Carew, A38 
South Brent, TQ10 9ER. A copy of the application is attached (Appendix ‘A’) . 
 

1.2 The application is for the sale and supply of alcohol for consumption off the 
premises daily between 5am and midnight. Also for the provision of late night 
refreshment daily from 11pm to 5am 
 

1.3 The Sub-Committee are reminded these premises already have a premises licence 
granted in 2005 for late night refreshment (daily between 11pm & 5am) and this 
licence will continue irrespective of the outcome of the current application. Should 
this application be granted, whether in whole or in part, it will be up to the applicants 
to decide whether to keep both licences or to surrender one 
 

1.4 The applicant included a document with the application named ‘Analysis of Intensity 
of Use’ providing data showing the number of customer transactions from the 
premises relating to fuel and number of transactions relating to convenience store 
items over the period 1st June to 31st August 2013 (Appendix ‘B’ ). 
In order to assist the Licensing Sub-Committee in establishing the  ‘Primary Use’ of 
this site an email was sent Shell UK on 10th December 2013 asking for the average 
price per litre profit made by Shell of fuel sold at one of their owned filling stations 
(Appendix ‘C’ ). A reply is still awaited.  
Also to assist in establishing whether or not the premises may be ‘excluded 
premises’ (and prohibited from selling alcohol) a more detailed letter raising a 
number of important questions was sent to the applicant’s representatives on 13 
December 2013, the intention being to assist the Licensing Sub-Committee in 
determining ‘Primary Use’ (Appendix ‘D’ with question 4 about fuel sales 
redacted from public view ). A reply is awaited.   

 
1.5 As the applicants wish to sell alcohol and provide night refreshment, under the 

Licensing Act 2003 they require a premises licence. As regards to this application 
responsible authorities and any other persons may make representations. 

 



1.6 We have received representations from six District Councillors plus the South 
Brent Parish Council in respect of this application. These can be found in 
Appendix ‘E’ . The representations relate to all four of the licensing objectives: 
prevention of crime and disorder; public safety; prevention of public nuisance; 
protection of children from harm. 

 
1.7 It has not been possible for the Licensing Department to mediate with all parties 

therefore a satisfactory conclusion has not been possible. 
 
(Please note that due to the amount of paperwork co ntained within these 
appendices, full copies have only been circulated t o the Sub-committee Members. 
Anyone who would like to receive full (or part) cop ies are asked to contact 
Member Support Services on (01803) 861273.)   
 
2. ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION –  
 
2.1 As mentioned above, representations have been received from six District 

Councillors and the local Parish Council. Their representations are attached 
(Appendix ‘E’)  and relate to all four of the licensing objectives. 

 
2.2 Under Section 176 Licensing Act 2003 alcohol is prohibited from being sold or 

supplied at motorway service areas and from premises used primarily as a 
garage, or are part of premises used primarily as a garage. Premises are used 
as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following: 

  - the retailing of petrol; 
  - the retailing of derv; 
  - the sale of motor vehicles; and 
  - the maintenance of motor vehicles. 
 
2.3 National guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003 (see 5.1 - 5.4 

below) states that to establish primary use, the approach so far endorsed by the 
courts is based on intensity of use, although that has been somewhat widened, 
see background documents.   

 
2.4 We have received from the applicant an ‘Analysis of Intensity of Use’ (Appendix 

‘B’ ) which presents data representing the number of customer transactions for 
convenience store items, number for fuel and total number of transactions over 
the period 1st June to 31st August 2013. It appears that when both shop items 
and fuel items were purchased, a transaction is logged under both categories. 
Clarification has been requested in letter dated 13th December (Appendix ‘D’ ).    

 
2.5 During a previous application in 2011/12 to sell alcohol from this site (and 

subsequently withdrawn after three adjournments), the same applicant was 
asked to provided information regarding gross margin on fuel and convenience 
sales for the period 1st March to 31st May 2011. It was confirmed then that the 
shop was a franchise and as such makes a profit of “0.005 pence” per litre on 
fuel which equates to ½p per litre. Profit made on convenience store items at this 
time was 22%. The email (Appendix ‘C’) to Shell and letter (Appendix D) to the 
applicant’s representatives are intended to explore this further, and to assist the 
Licensing Sub-Committee to establish the ‘primary use’ of the premises.    

 



2.6 The Licensing Department has requested that further information be provided 
before the hearing, showing the breakdown of customer transactions purchasing 
fuel only, purchasing convenience store items only and number of mixed 
transactions for both fuel and convenience store items.  

 
2.7 The Sub Committee will now need to consider this application. 
 
3. STATUTORY BODIES’ RESPONSE 
 
3.1 Devon & Cornwall Constabulary 
 No representations have been received. 
 
3.2 Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Service 

 No representations have been received. 
 
3.3 Area Child Protection Committee and Local Safeguarding Children Board 

No representations have been received. 
 
3.4 Devon Trading Standards 
 No representations have been received. 
 
3.5 South Hams District Council, Environmental Health Department (Pollution) 

No representations have been received. 
 
3.6 South Hams District Council, Environmental Health Department (Health & Safety) 

No representations have been received. 
 
3.7 South Hams District Council, Planning Department 
 No representations have been received. 
 
3.8 Primary Care Trust / Local Health Boards, Devon Drug and Alcohol Team 

No representations have been received. 
 
4. RELEVANT LICENSING POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Licensing Objectives 
 
4.1 Section 2.1 of the Policy states:  The Licensing Authority has a duty under the 

Act to carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the four licensing 
objectives. 
(These objectives are the only matters to be taken into account in determining 
the application and any conditions attached must be appropriate to achieve the 
licensing objectives). 
(This is having first determined whether the premises are ‘excluded’ or not).  

 
4.2  Section 2.2 of the Policy states:  A licence will only be granted where the 

Licensing Authority is satisfied that these objectives have been met.  
 
4.3 Section 2.3 of the Policy lists the kind of measures the Licensing Authority will be 

expecting to see taken into account to promote the objectives.  
 



Conditions 
 

4.4  Sections 2.5 & 2.6 of the Policy sets out additional legislation, strategies, policies 
and guidance that the Licensing Authority will have regard. Section 4 of the policy 
sets out what the Sub-Committee should consider before imposing conditions on 
a licence. 

 
4.5  The Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003 which was revised 

and re-published in June 2013 states:  
 

4.6 The Licensing Authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has 
been engaged following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a 
result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that is 
appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing 
objectives (paragraph 10.8 of the guidance). 

 
4.7  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate 

conditions should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. In certain 
circumstances, conditions relating to noise immediately surrounding the premises 
may also prove appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers 
enter and leave (paragraph 2.22 of guidance). 

 
Licensing Hours 
 

4.8 Sections 6.1 & 6.2 of the Policy states:  The Licensing Authority will deal with the 
issue of licensing hours on the individual merits of each application. When the 
Authority’s discretion is engaged, consideration will be given to the individual 
merits of an application but the presumption will be to grant the hours requested 
unless there are objections to those hours raised by Responsible Authorities or 
other persons on the basis of the licensing objectives. However, when dealing 
with licensing hours beyond midnight it is more likely that relevant 
representations will be made unless there are higher standards of control 
included within operating schedules to promote the licensing objectives, 
especially for premises which are situated near residential areas or in areas 
where anti-social disorder takes place.  
There is no presumption within the legislation for longer opening hours.   

 
4.9 Section 6.5 of the Policy states: The terminal hours will normally be approved 

where the Applicant can show that the proposal would not adversely affect the 
licensing objectives unless, after hearing relevant representation the Licensing 
Authority believe it appropriate (necessary), proportionate and reasonable to 
restrict the hours required. The Licensing Authority may set an earlier terminal 
hour where it considers this is appropriate to the nature of the activities and the 
amenity of the area. 

 
4.10 Paragraph 10.13 of Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 states: shops, stores and supermarkets should normally be free to provide 
sales of alcohol for consumption off the premises at any times when the retail 
outlet is open for shopping unless there are good reasons, based on the 
licensing objectives, for restricting those hours  
 



 Children 
 

 4.11 Section 7.1 of the Policy states: The Licensing Authority recognises the great 
variety of premises for which licences may be sought.  These will include 
theatres, cinemas, restaurants, pubs, nightclubs, cafes, takeaways, community 
halls and schools.  Access by children to all types of premises will not be limited 
unless it is considered necessary to do so in order to protect them from harm.  

4.12 Section 7.2 of the Policy states: When deciding whether to limit access of 
children the Licensing Authority will judge each application on its own individual 
merits.  Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children include 
premises: - 

� where entertainment of an adult or sexual nature is provided 
� where there is a strong element of gambling taking place 
� with a known association with drug taking or dealing 
� where there have been convictions of the current management for serving 

alcohol to minors 
� with a reputation for underage drinking 
� where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is exclusive or 

primary purpose of the services provided at the premises. 
 
 
5. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS   
 
5.1 Section 176 of Licensing Act 2003 prohibits the sale of alcohol at motorway 

service areas and restricts the circumstances in which alcohol may be sold at 
garages. The sale and supply of alcohol is prohibited from premises that are 
used primarily as a garage, or are part of premises used primarily as a garage. 
Premises are used as a garage if they are used for one or more of the following: 

  - the retailing of petrol; 
  - the retailing of derv; 
  - the sale of motor vehicles; and 
  - the maintenance of motor vehicles. 
 
5.2 National Guidance issued under Section 182 Licensing Act 2003 paragraphs 

5.22 -5.23 states: 
 

The Licensing Authority must decide whether or not premises are used primarily 
as a garage. The accepted approach is based on “intensity of use” to establish 
“primary use”. For example, if a garage shop in any rural area is used more 
intensely by customers purchasing other products than by customers purchasing 
the products or services listed above (see 5.1), it may be eligible to seek 
authority to sell or supply alcohol.  

  
Where there is insufficient evidence to establish primary use, it is for the 
Licensing Authority to decide whether to grant the licence and deal with any 
issues through enforcement action and it may be able to use its case 
management powers to enable further evidence to be obtained. 

 
 
 



 5.3 The Act requires mandatory conditions to be imposed on the licence, the wording 
of which is prescribed by the Act but may be summarised as follows: 
 
(a) Section 19 - Mandatory conditions relating to t he supply of alcohol  
No alcohol may be supplied unless there is a Designated Premises Supervisor 
who also holds a personal licence. 
Every supply of alcohol under a premises licence must be made or authorised by 
a personal licence. 

 
(b) Section 19A - Age verification policy 

  

(1)  The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall 
ensure that an age verification policy applies to the premises in relation to 
the sale or supply of alcohol. 

(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person 
to be under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the 
policy) to produce on request, before being served alcohol, identification 
bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 
(c) Section 21 - Door Supervision 
 
Where door supervisors are specified by condition, those individuals must be 
licensed by the SIA. 
 

5.4   As there have been relevant representations in respect of the new premises 
application, this hearing must be held.  (Relevant representations are about the 
likely effect of the grant of the application on the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, by responsible authorities or any other persons).  The sub-committee 
must disregard any information or evidence not relevant to the licensing 
objectives. 

 
5.5     The sub-committee must consider this application firstly in accordance with 

Section 176 of the Act and make a determination whether the premises are used 
primarily as a garage selling petrol or diesel or are part of premises used 
primarily used for selling petrol or diesel. If this is so determined then there is a 
prohibition on selling alcohol. If the determination is the premises are a shop that 
sells petrol or diesel then the matter may proceed in accordance with Section 4 of 
the Licensing Act 2003, which requires that licensing functions must be carried 
out with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives.  The Licensing 
Authority must also have regard to its own licensing policy and the Secretary of 
State’s guidance, but may depart from both if it has good reason to do so.  Those 
reasons should be stated. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



5.6  The Act requires (Section 18) that in dealing with a new application, the 
committee takes any of the following steps which are appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives: 

 
 (a) To grant the Licence subject to:- 

i any Mandatory Conditions required; 
ii modifying the conditions which have been specified in the operating 

schedule; 
(b) to exclude any of the licensable activities to which the application 

relates; 
 (c) to refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premises supervisor; 
 (d) to reject the application 

 
The Sub-Committee must give its reasons for its decision to take any of these 
steps.  Similarly, if the application is rejected, the Sub-Committee must give its 
reasons. 

 
5.7  The Sub-Committee will need to consider the hours of operation proposed, the 

effectiveness of the operating schedule proposed by the applicant, the 
representations received, the location of the premises in relation to residential 
properties, the history of the management of the premises, the evidence 
produced of any problems in the past, and the likely impact of any extension of 
hours and activities, public transport, taxi availability, the right the applicant has 
to operate a business and balancing the rights of residents to the quiet enjoyment 
and privacy of family life.  That South Hams relies on tourism, with the population 
in the district doubling in the summer months with holidaymakers both from this 
country and international visitors who are, in the main, families with young 
children and retired people – the very segment of society who would perhaps be 
deterred by anti-social behaviour. These issues, and any other relevant ones, 
may be explored at the hearing in so far as it reflects the four licensing 
objectives. 

 
5.8 If the Sub-Committee rejects the application, determines the premises are  

primarily a ‘garage retailing petrol or diesel’ or modifies the conditions of the 
licence, the applicant or any person who made a relevant representation in 
relation to this appeal may appeal within 21 days of notification of the decision to 
the Magistrates’ Court. Those making relevant representations may also appeal if 
they believe that the licence should not have been granted, or that, when 
granting the licence, the Licensing Authority ought to have imposed different or 
additional conditions, excluded licensable activities from the scope of the licence 
or refused to specify a person as the premises supervisor. The Magistrates’ 
Court may dismiss the appeal, or substitute its own decision, or send back the 
case to the Licensing Authority with directions as to how the case is to be dealt 
with.  The Magistrates’ Court may make any costs order it thinks fit. 

 
5.9 If extended hours/licensable activities are granted, the Licensing Act contains 

review provisions which enable a responsible authority or any other person to 
apply to this Licensing Authority for a review of the licence.  A hearing follows 
which enables the sub-committee to use the normal powers at a hearing (set out 
above) but also to suspend the licence for a period of up to three months or to 
revoke it. 



 
6. RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
Corporate priorities 
engaged: 

There is a link to the Council’s priority of improving 
Community Life and developing the Local 
Economy. 

Statutory powers:  
 

Licensing Act 2003 

Considerations of equality 
and human rights: 
 

Compliance with the Human Rights Act 1998 
– Article 6: Right to a fair hearing 

Biodiversity considerations:  
 

Not applicable 

Sustainability 
considerations: 

As above under corporate priorities engaged 

Crime and disorder 
implications: 

Section 17 of Crime and Disorder Act 1998 
applies. 

Background papers:  
 

2012 – ‘Primary Use’ Portsmouth Magistrates 
Court appeal (application by Shell for the Whichers 
Gate Petrol Station at Rowlands Castle) 
 
June 2012 – ‘Primary Use’ Leeds Magistrates 
Court appeal (relating to premises licence 
application at Shell Pool Bridge) – can take into 
account a wider range of factors when making a 
decision.  
 
Responses to Notices of Hearing 
 
Summary of Key Points 
 
Guidance on Meeting the Licensing Objectives 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 
 
Guidance issued under Section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 
 
The District Council’s Statement of Licensing 
Policy 
 
Section 109(2)(b) Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act 2011 that amended any 
conditions imposed on determining an application 
for a new premises licence under Section 18 (3)(b) 
Licensing Act 2003 from ‘necessary’ to read 
‘appropriate’.  
 
 
 
 



Appendices attached:  Appendix A  - Application for new premises licence 
 
Appendix B - Analysis of Intensity of use 
 
Appendix C – Email to Shell average pence per    
litre profit at the pump. 
 
Appendix D - Letter to applicant’s representative 
requesting further information to establish ‘Primary 
use’. (Confidential information redacted).  
 
Appendix E -  Representations  

 



STRATEGIC RISKS TEMPLATE 
 
 

 
No 

 
Risk Title  

 
Risk/Opportunity 
Description  

Inherent risk status   
Mitigating & Management actions  

 
Ownership  Impact of 

negative 
outcome  

Chance 
of 
negative 
outcome  

Risk 
score and 
direction 
of travel  

1 Ensuring the 
Licensing 
Objectives are 
not undermined 

To review the 
application in line with: 

The Licensing Act; 
 National Guidance 
issued by the 
Secretary of State, and 
The South Hams 
District Council 
Statement of Licensing 
Policy. 
 

To create an increased 
opportunity for 
employment in the 
district. 

An opportunity to 
maintain the districts 
distinctive environment 
whilst enabling access 
and sensitive 
development. 

To consider whether 
the proposal would 
promote tourism. The 

3 2 6 
���� To be able to give consideration to 

representations in line with the 
Licensing Objectives, namely:- 

The prevention of Crime and 
Disorder; 
Public Safety; 
The prevention of public nuisance; 
and 
The Protection of children from 
harm. 
 
 
The Licensing Authority follows 
strict legislation in accordance with 
the Licensing Act 2003 and adheres 
to the statutory instruments 
contained within the Act. 

EH Business 
Support / 
Licensing 
Manager. 



 
No 

 
Risk Title  

 
Risk/Opportunity 
Description  

Inherent risk status   
Mitigating & Management actions  

 
Ownership  Impact of 

negative 
outcome  

Chance 
of 
negative 
outcome  

Risk 
score and 
direction 
of travel  

population doubles in 
the summer months 
with tourists and 
international visitors 
who are, in the main, 
families with young 
children and retired 
people – the very 
segments of society 
who would perhaps be 
deterred by anti-social 
behaviour. 
 
Failure to adequately 
consider these issues 
could result in the 
Council facing an 
appeal to the 
Magistrates Court. 
 

 

Direction of travel symbols ���� ���� ���� 
 
 
 
 
 



LSC 22.01.14  

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE  HELD AT 
FOLLATON HOUSE, TOTNES ON WEDNESDAY 22 JANUARY 2014  

 
 

Present:  Cllrs Baverstock, Carson and Gilbert 
   G Munson, Business Support Manager  
   T Johnson, Solicitor 
   D White, Democratic Services Manager 
   N Wopling, Licensing Officer 
 

Members also in attendance and participating: 
Cllrs Barber, Baldry, Holway and Pannell  
 
Members also in attendance and not participating: 
Cllrs Hicks and Steer 

 
Also in attendance and participating for the Applic ant: 
Leo Charalambides (Ely Place Chambers), Corrigan Lockett (Lockett & Co), Geoff 
Wadeson (General Manager & Designated Premises Supervisor)    
 
 
LSC.11/13 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 
 

RESOLVED 
 
That Cllr Baverstock be appointed Chairman for the duration of 
the meeting. 
 

 
LSC.12/13 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
  Members and officers were invited to declare any interests in the items of 

business to be considered during the course of the meeting.  These were 
recorded as follows:- 

 
  Mr G Munson and Cllrs Baldry, Carson and Holway declared a personal 

interest in Item 4: “To Determine an Application for a New Premises Licence – 
Shell Carew, A38 South Brent, TQ10 9ER” (minute LSC.13/13 below refers) 
by virtue of purchasing fuel from the application site and each remained in the 
meeting and took part in the discussion on this item. 

 
  Cllr Pannell also declared a personal interest in Item 4: “To Determine an 

Application for a New Premises Licence – Shell Carew, A38 South Brent, 
TQ10 9ER” (minute LSC.13/13 below refers) by virtue of her holding of a 
personal licence for South Brent Village Hall and remained in the meeting and 
took part in the discussion on this item. 

 
 



LSC 22.01.14  

LSC.13/13 TO DETERMINE AN APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICE NCE – 
SHELL CAREW, A38 SOUTH BRENT TQ10 9ER 

 
1. Initial Address by the Applicants’ Legal Represe ntatives 
 

At the discretion of the Chairman, the Applicant’s legal representative, Mr 
Charalambides, explained that he wished to make two specific preliminary 
points in respect of the substantive hearing.  He made this application as 
the points would have a direct bearing on the deliberations of the Sub-
Committee if they accepted his interpretation of a narrow legal point.  
These two points were in relation to:- 
 
(a) Section 176 of the Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) being incompatible with 

the EU Services Directive; and 
(b) Paragraph 5.5 of the presented agenda report being legally incorrect 

since it did not take account of new legislation. 
  
In expanding upon these points, Mr Charalambides wished to make 
specific reference to:- 
 
- the statutory requirement for the Sub-Committee to be non-

discriminatory and justified in its decision-making.  Furthermore, the 
Sub-Committee was advised of the importance of being proportionate 
to public interest, unambiguous and transparent; 

- the legislation not speaking to any overriding public interest; 
- there being no High Court decisions yet made in relation to Section 176 

and its compatibility with EU law; 
- the lack of legislative guidance and consequent lack of clarity and 

inconsistency in respect of whether or not a premises was primarily 
used as a ‘garage’ or ‘shop’ as defined under Section 176; 

- there being a number of subjective matters raised in representations 
regarding whether or not the primary use of the premises was a 
‘garage’ or ‘shop’.  Mr Charalambides argued that these were irrelevant 
in light of the legislation which stated that you could not discriminate 
against one service specifically and in this instance garage forecourts; 

- there being far ranging ramifications from this Directive coming into 
effect, with doubts now being cast on previous cases which had been 
determined across the country; 

- the very recent decision to grant a licence to Wetherspoons to open the 
first motorway service station pub on the M40. 

 
In his concluding preliminary stage comments, Mr Charalambides 
reiterated that Section 176 of the Act was now incompatible with EU 
legislation.  Therefore, the Sub-Committee was urged to ignore the matter 
of the primary use of the premises and was asked to consider whether or 
not to grant a Premises Licence for this application in the normal manner. 
 
(At 12 noon, the Sub-Committee adjourned in the presence of Messrs 
Johnson and White and re-convened at 12.10pm). 

 



LSC 22.01.14  

 
2. Sub-Committee Decision on the Preliminary Point 

 
The Chairman proceeded to inform those present that the Sub-Committee 
totally accepted the submission of the legal representatives and the 
meeting would consequently be progressed on the basis that the primary 
use of the application should not be differentiated between a ‘garage’ or a 
‘shop’ and therefore, the hearing would be conducted on the same basis 
as any other normal premises’ licence application.  

 
3. Business Support Manager’s Report 

 
The Business Support Manager introduced the report to the Sub-
Committee and specifically advised that: 
 
- the premises already had a late night refreshment licence and was 

open for twenty-four hours per day; 
- the shop had recently been redesigned; 
- it was his opinion that the premises were suitable for the sale and 

supply of alcohol; 
- the application sought approval for the sale of alcohol between the 

hours of 0500 and 2400.  In the village of South Brent, the pubs could 
sell alcohol until 2400, with the local convenience stores closing before 
this time.  

   
4. Address by the Applicant’s Legal Representatives  
 

In their address, the Applicant’s legal representatives made specific 
reference to:- 
 
- the wish for the Application to be amended.  In light of concerns raised, 

the representatives informed that they were willing to amend their 
application whereby alcohol would not be sold between the hours of 
2300 and 0800; 

- having sympathy with the road safety issues raised in the 
representations submitted.  Whilst having sympathy in this regard, the 
representatives maintained that this was not a matter for the Sub-
Committee to give weighting to during its deliberations.  The site was 
well lit, but it was considered to be a matter for an individual if they 
wished to walk to the site from the village; 

- the officer view that there was no problem with granting the application; 
- the responsible authorities having raised no objections to the 

application.  The representatives stated that this supported the belief 
that the measures put in place by the applicants worked.  For example, 
service was only conducted through a serving hatch between 2300 and 
0500, high quality CCTV was in operation, staff training was extensive 
and staff records were regularly updated.  In addition, it was company 
policy for all spirits to be located behind the counter and individual cans 
(or strong cans) of liquor were not sold; 



LSC 22.01.14  

- Mr Wadeson (the Designated Premises Supervisor) having worked for 
Shell for over 22 years and being local; 

- the request to transfer (and cancel) the late night refreshment licence 
and replace it with a new premises licence. 
 

5. Address by the District Council Ward Members 
 

(a) Cllr Holway 
 
In his address, Cllr Holway highlighted that: 
 
- the site was isolated and by its nature, was more attractive to thieves; 
- there was potential to encourage more drink driving.  Cllr Holway 

advised that evidence suggested that problems could arise from 
vehicles in which drivers and passengers were looking for sites which 
sold alcohol; 

- there was potential for crime and disorder issues to increase after 
closing time from nearby premises, with concern also being expressed 
for employees from a public order perspective; 

- the poor access in and out of the site, which could lead to potentially 
more incidents and queues of traffic on the A38; 

- the on-site parking was inadequate, with this potentially being 
exacerbated by the additional sale of alcohol; 

- regarding the possibility for pedestrians to access the site, Cllr Holway 
also advised that there had been at least one fatality in the vicinity of 
the site; 

- there was a potential issue in respect of protecting children from harm.  
With the site being located half a mile from South Brent, there was 
potential for adults to purchase alcohol at this site for the consumption 
of children in the village whilst retaining a degree of anonymity.  

 
(b) Cllr Barber 
 
Cllr Barber wished to raise the following points:- 
 
- He was particularly concerned about road safety issues, with the site 

having very difficult access on to the A38.  Moreover, this site was not 
a motorway service area and was limited in its space. Whilst the site 
was well lit, Cllr Barber also pointed out that when leaving the site, it 
was both very dark and isolated; 

- The ease of accidental access for pedestrians (particularly 
unsupervised children) on to the A38 was felt to be a further public 
safety issue; 

- The proposed amendments to the licensing hours were welcomed by 
Cllr Barber. 

 



LSC 22.01.14  

(c) Cllr Pannell 
 

In her address, Cllr Pannell made reference to:- 
 
- the village of South Brent being the most affected by this application; 
- her sorrow that the primary use argument had seemingly been 

superseded; 
- her concerns regarding road safety.  In echoing the comments raised 

by other Members, Cllr Pannell also wished to question why the Stop 
Sign had been removed from the point where customers left the site, 
which she felt was a retrograde step.  In reply, the legal 
representatives advised that they would look into this matter; 

- her belief that there had been an on-site accident only this week; 
- the serious concerns of the Parish Council (PC).  In stressing the views 

of the PC, Cllr Pannell felt that an explanation of the primary use 
matter should be issued to the local PC and the wider Council 
membership. 

 
(d) Cllr Baldry 

 
Cllr Baldry wished to highlight the following points:- 
 
- Regarding the transparency of the Sub-Committee adjourning to 

consider the primary use matter and the subsequent decision taken, 
Cllr Baldry wished for his frustrations at this decision to be formally 
recorded; 

- Frequently, a queue of cars would be backed up on to the A38 from the 
site entrance; 

- There was a distinct difference in the site at the top of Haldon Hill 
selling alcohol, which was a much larger area, with the ability for 
coaches to stop on-site.  Cllr Baldry also wished to reiterate the points 
in relation to the site being small, unsafe, a congested area and the 
dangerous exit on to the A38. 

 
The Chairman thanked the Members for their valued contributions and 
invited the applicant’s legal representatives to respond to any points 
raised.  In so doing, Mr Charalambides replied that:- 
 
- there was no actual evidence regarding the public safety concerns 

raised; 
- they failed to see the difference between granting a licence for this site 

and a rural, isolated pub. 
 

(At 12.45pm, the Sub-Committee adjourned in the presence of Messrs 
Johnson and White to determine the licence and reconvened at 12.55pm).  

 



LSC 22.01.14  

6. The Decision 
 

The Chairman announced the decision of the Sub-Committee as follows:- 
 
‘We have considered the application for a new premises licence.  We 
have considered the Statement of Licensing Policy, the government 
guidance and our obligations that relate to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 
 
We have read carefully the written representations from parties not 
present today and have read carefully representations received from 
parties present plus additional statements from persons here today. 
 
We did not hear any firm justifiable evidence to refuse this application and 
it is therefore our decision to grant this application subject to the following 
changes being incorporated into the operating schedule, which we have 
determined to be appropriate to achieve the licensing objectives: 
 
- The hours permitted for the licensable activities are between 8.00am 

and 11.00pm daily; 
- Alcohol must only be sold in sealed containers.  

 
Although sympathetic to the issue of road safety, the Sub-Committee is not 
able to consider this under the Licensing Act 2003, but we would like to 
informally ask the site manager to reinstall the stop sign at the exit to the 
site, if at all possible. 
 
Finally, the Sub-Committee endorses the suggestion that the terms of the 
existing late night refreshment licence should be incorporated into the new 
premises licence, with that licence then cancelled. 
 
A detailed written notice would be sent to all parties in due course setting 
out the full reasons behind each of the decisions arrived at. 
 

 
(The meeting was subsequently declared closed at 1.00 pm). 
 
 

(Meeting commenced at 11.30 am and concluded at 1.00 pm) 
 

    
Chairman 

 


	Agenda
	1 Agenda Letter
	2a Shell Carew, A38, South Brent
	3 Minutes

